WEST (INNER) AREA COMMITTEE

TUESDAY, 25TH MARCH, 2014

PRESENT: Councillor C Gruen in the Chair

Councillors T Hanley, J Harper, A Lowe,

J McKenna and N Taggart

Co-optees H Boutle, E Bowes and K Ritchie

87 Chairs opening comments

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.

The Chair informed the meeting that it was the last Inner West Area Committee meeting for the Area Leader West North West who is moving to take up the Area Leader role in the East of the city. The Chair thanked the Area Leader for her support.

The Chair also informed the Area Committee that it was the last meeting for Councillor Taggart who will not be standing for Council at the forthcoming elections. The Chair thanked Councillor Taggart for his contributions to the Inner West Area.

88 Appeals Against Refusal of Inspection of Documents

There were no appeals against the refusal of inspection of documents.

89 Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public

There was no exempt information.

90 Late Items

There were no late items.

91 Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

No declarations were made.

92 Apologies for Absence

There were no apologies for absence.

93 Open Forum / Community Forums

In accordance with paragraphs 6.24 and 6.25 of the Area Committee Procedure Rules, at the discretion of the Chair a period of up to 10 minutes

may be allocated at each ordinary meeting for members of the public to make representations or to ask questions on matters within the terms of reference of the Area Committee. This period of time may be extended at the discretion of the Chair. No member of the public shall speak for more than three minutes in the Open Forum, except by permission of the Chair.

At this meeting there were some members of the public, Head Teachers, Assistant Principals and Principals and officers. No representations or questions were received at the Open Forum. However, the Chair gave permission for those present to join in the discussions on the items on the agenda if they so wished.

94 Minutes - 19th February 2014

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 19th February 2014 be approved as a correct record.

95 Matters Arising

Minute 83 Employment & Skills

Head of Employment and Skills was to make contact with Premier Farnells in relation to recruiting locally.

Outcome

A meeting was arranged for 18th March 2014 with officers from Employment and Skills and Farnells.

Members were pleased with the contributions from Farnells.

96 Area Panel Minutes

The Committee considered the minutes of the Inner West Area Panel meeting held on 10th February 2014.

RESOLVED – That the minutes be noted.

97 Area Chairs Forum Minutes

The minutes of the Area Chairs Forum meeting held on 20th January 2014 were considered by the Committee.

The Area Leader informed Members that the Chief Officer for Strategy and Commissioning had produced a report on Domestic Violence.

RESOLVED – That the minutes be noted.

98 Community Forum Minutes

The Committee received the minutes of the Armley Community Forum meeting held on 18th February 2014 and the Bramley and Stanningley Combined Police PACT meeting held on 30th January 2014.

RESOLVED – That the minutes be noted.

99 Children's Services Performance Report

The report of the Director of Children's Services was presented by the Chief Officer Partnership Development. The report provided Members with a comprehensive set of children's information. The Chief Officer Partnership Development informed the Members that feedback from Area Committee's showed that they wanted performance information against the obsessions. The Inner West Area Lead for Children has requested more detailed reports.

The Area Committee were informed that looked after children in the area had reduced by a larger proportion than the citywide reduction. Fewer children were entering care, and greater numbers were leaving as permanent options such as adoption were rising.

The Area Committee were also informed that the number of Children on a child protection plan had reduced by almost 50 per cent, the second highest reduction of all area committees.

The Chief Officer Partnership Development reported that detailed information on looked after children would be brought to a future committee meeting.

The Chief Officer Partnership Development told the Committee that there were still areas of concern including:

- The attainment and achievement levels in the area;
- The reduction in the take up of free school meals; and
- Attendance levels remained a concern although attendance at secondary schools in the area had risen slightly.

It was noted that Members are due to attend an OBA workshop on school places and local engagement on Thursday 27th March.

The Area Committee discussed all the issues raised in the report. Members also were of the view that it was important to ensure that the emphasis for performance was on the children attaining and achieving, not only on whether an establishment received a good Ofsted report.

RESOLVED – That the Area Committee

- Lead Member for Children's Services to discuss with the Area Head of Targeted Services additional local priorities to the Children's Services Obsessions.
- Use the basic need workshop to provide local intelligence for consideration in school place planning and to instruct officers on improved methods of member engagement in school planning.
- Promote the use of the Igen centre on Eastgate and the Leeds Pathways website, to NEET young people and their families.

100 Readiness for learning and the inequality gap at age 5

The Director of Children's Services report 'Readiness for learning and the inequality gap at age 5' was presented by the Early Years Foundation Stage Improvement Manager. The report provided a brief overview of the statutory assessment outcomes at the end of the foundation stage at both citywide and local level. The report presented information on the composition of early years providers and local outcomes within the area, providing Members with a greater understanding on the notion of 'readiness to learn' as children move into key stage one from their foundation years experience.

Members were informed that all early years providers, including schools, must adhere to the requirements of the Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) Framework. The framework sets standards for development, learning and care of children from birth to the age of five. There are two headline indicators when measuring performance in the early years: the percentage of children achieving a good level of development and the Department of Education term the 'inequality gap in achievement' indicator.

On the good level of development indicator, performance in Leeds is above or in line with all core cities and above or in line with eight out of ten statistical neighbour authorities.

The 'inequality gap in achievement' indicator showed Leeds as the lowest ranked authority in the country.

Members raised their concerns with the figures set out in the submitted report particularly in 3.4.3 Ethnicity highlighting children whose first language is not English.

Members were concerned that Leeds was ranked 152 out of 152 local authorities for the 'inequality gap' measure. Members were of the view that this issue could not be worked through in isolation, links between health, jobs, and housing and culture were required to ensure that performance improved.

Members of the Area Committee sought clarification on the points system used to calculate the indicators. The Area Committee requested that this issue was brought back to the Committee as an agenda item

The Area Committee also requested that an item in relation to the 'inequality gap' measure be brought to a future meeting to look at ways of improving the

measure at a local level. The Members also requested that the Executive Member for Children's Services to be engaged with the West Inner Area Committee on this issue.

RESOLVED- That the Area Committee:

- Within the context of Priority 4 support children to be ready for learning discuss whether local priorities may be required to ensure children are ready for key stage one.
- Use existing local partnerships to encourage and support collaborative working between schools and non-school settings to ensure children are meeting age related expectations at the end of the EYFS. Such learning communities will provide the opportunity to find local solutions to the readiness to learn issue.
- Provide opportunities for partners across the foundation years to discuss and agree what 'readiness for learning' looks like at a local level. Do partners across health education and others recognise and acknowledge the significant period of growth, development and learning that takes place between the birth of a child and the time they enter school? Ensure they use this as a key driver to improve young children's development through local priorities.

Cllr. McKenna left the meeting at 18:25 at the end of this item.

Cllrs Lowe and Taggart left the room at 18:30 returning at 18:35.

101 OFSTED Framework & Future Leaders Bespoke Programme in Bramley

The Director of Children's Service report in relation to the Ofsted update and Future Leaders Bramley Pilot was presented to the Committee by the Head of Learning Improvement. The report provided Members with information in relation to changes to Ofsted inspections and an overview of the Future Leaders Bramley Pilot.

The Head of Learning Improvement presented Members with copies of the following papers:

- Powerpoint presentation OfSTED framework and Future Leaders bespoke programme in Bramley
- Inner West Area Ofsted information
- Inner West Area Committee learning outcomes

The Area Committee was informed that a new Ofsted framework was introduced in September 2012, with more changes introduced in January

2014. Members were provided with an overview of what inspectors focused on for their report, highlighting two of the areas as:

- The behaviour and safety of pupils at the school;
- The quality of leadership in, and management of, the school.

Members were informed that of the 18 schools within Inner West area, 2 secondary schools and 16 primary schools. Both secondary schools are sponsored academies.

1 school is rated 'outstanding', 13 schools in the area are 'good', 3 schools are rated as 'Satisfactory / requires improvement'. Swallow Hill Community College is yet to be inspected but as a maintained school was last rated as 'satisfactory'.

The Head of Learning Improvement informed the Area Committee about the Future Leaders programme aimed at teachers who want to become inspirational headteachers in challenging schools in an accelerated timeframe. Members were informed that the leadership development programme takes place over three years and places teachers into senior leadership positions in challenging schools. They are supported through training and development.

There are currently 350 Future Leaders working in 240 challenging secondary schools across the country. The programme is to be extended to include teachers in a primary setting.

There is a proposal for Future Leaders to work with the Bramley Cluster.

The Members welcomed the information and discussed issued raised within the report and the presentation. Members were informed that training would be given to Governors on the Ofsted Framework using the toolkit.

RESOLVED – That the Area Committee received the presentation for its consideration, input and discussion.

102 Families First

The Interim Project Manager for Families First presented the report of the Director of Children's Services. The report outlined the Families First programme, providing Members with highlight data related to Families First in the Inner West area, which outlined a number of the challenges and successes of the programme.

Members of the Area Committee were informed that at a national level the programme is known as Troubled Families. The programme uses a set criteria, and is built around delivering family support utilising a whole family approach.

The Area Committee was informed that Bramley has the highest number of families in the Families First Programme. The programme had been running for two years and had seen reduction in Anti-Social Behaviour and increased attendance rates in schools, the programme also supports adults into employment.

Members discussed the Families First programme requesting detailed information for the Armley and Bramley areas to be brought to a future meeting.

RESOLVED – That the Area Committee:

- Note the content of this report and recognise that the programme is in continuous development, with a good evidence base of impact.
- Identify ways in which clusters and service, area committees and the Families First Programme can deliver further improvements, particularly in respect to supporting adults into employment.
- Identify how the Area committee's and Children's Services can work towards sustainably embedding the Families First model the future and beyond the life of the programme.

103 NEET (Not in Education, Employment or Training) Update Report

The report of the Director of Children's Service was presented to the Area Committee by the Head of Service for Young People and Skills. The report provided an update on activity that is taking place across the City and locally to support the reduction of numbers of young people who are not in Education, Training or Employment (NEET). The report also provided an update on activities to improve access to employment opportunities across the area.

The Head of Service for Young People and Skills highlighted the following areas of the submitted report:

- Post 16 pathways work with the two academies in the area
- Youth Contract Support Programme to re-engage with 16 and 17 year olds working in partnership with IGEN
- Use of the Character and Resilience Framework
- Effective Transition Personal Advisors who provide support for vulnerable year 11 pupils giving support to young people to make choices and apply for post 16 options.

Discussion took place with Members on the areas highlighted in the submitted report.

RESOLVED – That the Area Committee:

- Continue to facilitate partners working together (including Leeds West Academy, Swallow Hill, IGEN, Colleges, LCC Services, Third Sector – ACES and Bramley clusters) on activities which can demonstrate impact and is based on mutual support and challenge;
- Further promote and celebrate the success of young people from Inner West Leeds developing a positive and optimistic narrative about aspirations, behaviours and character;
- Develop a destinations Team (made up of partners) working at an individual learner level to improve access to opportunities.

104 Wellbeing Fund Report

The report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Citizens and Communities) advised the Area Committee on the current position of the Inner West Wellbeing revenue and capital budget.

Members were informed that the Area Committee's budget for 2014/15 is to be £123,670, this represented a reduction of just under 10% on the budget from last year. Including the carry forward, the budget for the new financial year would be £139,921 with the split being as follows:

- Armley £74,565
- Bramley 65,356

The Area Committee were asked to consider new Wellbeing grant applications for the 2014/15 financial year as listed at Appendix 3 of the submitted report. Members had reviewed the applications at Ward Member meetings and the General Purposes Sub Group.

The report also sought permission from the Area Committee to introduce an open application process for the 2014/15 Youth Activities Fund budget as outlined at 3.10 of the submitted report.

RESOLVED – That the Area Committee:

- Note the current balance of the 2013/14 Wellbeing revenue budget and the new revenue allocation.
- Approved the following 2014/15 Wellbeing applications

Project Name	Armley	Bramley & Stanningley	Total	Resolved
Small grants and skips	£3,000	£3,000	£6,000	Approved
Festive Light Motif Hire	£2,030	£2,615	£4,645	Approved
Priority Neighbourhoods Budget	£2,000	£2,000	£4,000	Approved
Armley Festive Lights Switch On	£5,500		£5,500	Approved
Bramley Festive Lights Switch On		£2,500*	£2,500	Approved
		(applied for £3,370)		
Police Off Road Bikes	£567	£567	£1,135	Approved
Armley Hanging Baskets	£950	I	£950	Approved
Fairfield Community Centre		£5,000*	£5,000	Approved
		(applied for £9,630)		
New Wortley Community Centre	£8,000* (applied for		£8,000	Approved
1213 Got Talent –	£20,000) £2,500*	£2,500*	£5,000	Approved
Angels of Youth	(applied for £2,920)	(applied for £2,920)		
World War One Commemorations	£1,000	£1,000	£2,000	Approved
Bramley Carnival		£3,000*	£3,000	Approved
		(£3,192 applied for. £3k approved subject to match funding approvals)		
Bramley Music Festival		£2,500* (£5,092 applied for.	£2,500	Approved
		£2,500 approved subject to match funding approvals)		
Multi Sports Holiday Camp	£1,344	£1,344	£2,688	Approved

Boys Brigade Gala	£1,500		£1,500	Approved
Armley Saturday Night Project	£4,107		£4107	Approved
Armley Brownie Sleepover	£1,000*		£1,000	Approved
	(£3,060 applied for)			
Winter Warmer Packs	£2,300	£1500	£3,800	Approved
POMOC	£700*		£700	Approved
	(£7,500 applied for)			
Active After Work	£2,170	£2,170	£4,340	Approved
Bramley Community Shop		£12,500	£12,500	Approved
Armley Food Bank Christmas Donation	£2,000		£2,000	Approved
Money Buddies	£1,065	£1,065	£2,130	Approved
Broadleas CCTV		£1,784	£1,784	Approved
Bramley Grit Bins		£600	£600	Approved
Bramley Site Based Gardener		£9,602*	£9,602	Approved
		4 days per week for 6 months per year		
TOTAL	£41,733	£55,247	£96,980	

• Agree to introducing an open application process for the 2014/15 Youth Activities Fund as described at 3.10 of the submitted report.

105 Area Update Report: Business Plan End of Year Update

The report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Citizens and Communities) provided the Members with a summary of the Area Committee's Business Plan for the year 2013/14 and successes in meeting objectives.

Members were informed that objectives set out in the 2013/14 Business Plan were progressing well and that the Area Committee had achieved what it set to do.

The report asked Members to discuss and agree upon a name for the new Community Committee.

RESOLVED – That the Area Committee:

Recommended future direction for the next years Business Plan including;

- Progressing the Business plan at the General Purposes Meeting
- Incorporating reference to Premier Farnells under Best City for Business
- Agree that the name for the Community Committee will be Armley and Bramley Community Committee

106 Dates, Times and Venues of Community Committee Meetings 2014/15

The report of the City Solicitor requested Members considered the options detailed within the report and to agree the Committee's proposed meeting schedule for the 2014/15 municipal year, so that it could be included in the Council diary for 2014/15.

The report also requested Members to consider as to whether they wished to change the Committee's current meeting and venue arrangements or request amendments to such arrangements.

Members were requested to consider and agree the proposed date for the meeting on the 5th June 2014 scheduled to elect a Chair for the 2014/15 municipal year.

Members briefly discussed the issues within the report.

RESOLVED- That the Area Committee

- •Agreed the dates and times as proposed:
 - o Wednesday, 16th July 2014 at 5.00pm
 - o Wednesday, 15th October 2014 at 5.00pm
 - Wednesday, 21st January 2015 at 5.00pm
 - Wednesday, 18th March 2015 at 5.00pm
 - The proposed date for the meeting to elect a Chair for the 2014/2015 municipal year is 4.00 p.m. on Thursday, 5th June 2014.